
 

1 

 

 

                  

Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District 
 

210 West Spencer Avenue, Suite B • Gunnison, Colorado 81230 

Telephone (970) 641-6065 • www.ugrwcd.org  

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

AGENDA – COMBINED BUDGET WORK SESSION & REGULAR BOARD MEETING   

Monday, September 26, 2022 at 5:30 p.m. 

210 West Spencer Avenue, Suite B, Gunnison, CO 81230 

and via Zoom video/teleconferencing: 
   https://us02web.zoom.us/meeting/register/tZMpc-itqjwvGdflxLZJykJ9KRuHhbfURSrd 

 

MISSION STATEMENT 

To be an active leader in all issues affecting the water resources of the Upper Gunnison River Basin. 

 

5:30 p.m.  1. Call to Order 
 

5:31 p.m.  2.       Agenda Approval 
 

5:33 p.m.  3. Consent Agenda Items:  Any of the following items may be removed  

for discussion from the consent agenda at the request of any Board  member or 

citizen. 

• Approval of August 29, 2022 Meeting Minutes 

• Consideration of Operating Expenses 

• Consideration of Non-Operating Expenses  
 

5:40 p.m.  4. 2023 Budget Work Session 

• Discussion of Initial Draft 2023 Budget 

• Funding Requests for 2023 

 

6:30 p.m.  5. BREAK 

 
 

6:50 p.m.  6. Presentation & Conversation: John McClow & Sonja Chavez (UGRWCD) 

  and Erin Wilson (Wilson Water Group). Upper Gunnison Basin Hydrology,       

Compact Risk, & UGRWCD Risk Reduction.  

 

7:25 p.m. 7. Discussion with Colorado State Engineer, Kevin Rein, Regarding Potential  

Compact Curtailment Administration and Rules 

https://us02web.zoom.us/meeting/register/tZMpc-itqjwvGdflxLZJykJ9KRuHhbfURSrd


 

2 

 

 

 

 

7:50 p.m. 8.  Legal and Legislative Update 

 

8:00 p.m. 9. General Manager Update 
 

8:10 p.m. 10. Miscellaneous Matters  

• Gunnison Energy Production - Solar Panels 

• Current Gunnison River Spreadsheet 

• Newspapers and Other Water Articles 
 

8:15    p.m. 11. Citizens Comments 
 

8:17  p.m. 12. Future Meetings 
 

8:20 p.m. 13. Summary of Meeting Action Items 
  

8:30 p.m. 14. Adjournment 
 

 

Note: This agenda is subject to change, including the addition of items or the deletion of items at any time.  

All times are approximate.  Regular meetings, public hearings, and special meetings are recorded, and action 

can be taken on any item. The Board may address individual agenda items at any time or in any order to 

accommodate the needs of the Board and the audience. Persons with special needs due to a disability are 

requested to call the District at (970) 641-6065 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
210 West Spencer Avenue, Suite B • Gunnison, Colorado 81230 

Telephone (970) 641-6065 • www.ugrwcd.org 

http://www.ugrwcd.org/


AGENDA ITEM 3
Consent Agenda Items



1 

Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District 

Meeting Minutes of the Board of Directors 

Monday, August 29, 2022 

The Board of Directors of the Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District (UGRWCD) 

conducted a regular Board meeting on Monday, August 29, 2022 at 5:30 p.m. in the District office, 210 

West Spencer Avenue, Suite B, Gunnison, CO, 81230 and via Zoom video/teleconferencing. 

Board members present: Sara Bergstrom, Rosemary Carroll, Joellen Fonken, Rebie Hazard, Stacy 

McPhail, Julie Nania, Bill Nesbitt, Michelle Pierce, John Perusek, Don Sabrowski and Andy Spann.  

Board members absent:  None 

Others present:  

Sonja Chavez, UGRWCD General Manager 

Cheryl Cwelich, UGRWCD Watershed Program Coordinator 

Jesse Kruthaupt, Trout Unlimited 

John McClow, UGRWCD General Counsel 

Luke Mecklenburg, Colorado Attorney General’s Office (via Zoom) 

Beverly Richards, UGRWCD Water Resource Specialist 

Jill Steele, UGRWCD Accountant 

Chris Sturm, Colorado Water Conservation Board (via Zoom) 

Cody Tusing, City of Gunnison Public Works 

Sue Uerling, UGRWCD Admin. Asst./Communications Support Specialist 

1. Call to Order

President Michelle Pierce called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 

2. Agenda Approval

Director John Perusek moved and Director Rebie Hazard seconded approval of the agenda.  The 

motion carried. 

3. Consent Agenda Items

Director Julie Nania noted a correction to the July 25, 2022 minutes stating that on page 5, the 

representative from Commissioner Kate Greenburg’s office should be “Bethany” Howell, not Bethan. 

Director Rebie Hazard asked that the budget summary be pulled out for further discussion.   



 

2 

 

Director Sara Bergstrom moved and Director Joellen Fonken seconded approval of the consent 

agenda.  The motion carried. 

 

Director Hazard asked about the budget overrun in audit and accounting. General Manager Sonja 

Chavez responded that the overrun was due to work that Jill Steele has been doing with consultant Kim 

Antonucci in re-configuring and streamlining the District’s Quick Books accounting software. 

 

Rebie also asked about the overrun of expenses for interns. Sonja said that the District used two interns 

that were not budgeted for and that additional expenses were also incurred in paying John Murphy, who 

put in extra hours towards the social media campaign and the Gunnison River Festival. Rebie asked if in 

the future, interns can report to the Board about their accomplishments and experiences.  Sonja agreed 

this would be a good idea. It was noted that there are some unspent funds that were budgeted for in 2022 

that could be shifted to this category if needed.  Sonja offered that for 2023, it might be helpful to have a 

separate line item for interns. 

 

4. 2023 Budget 

 

Discussion of goals:  General Manager Chavez noted several programs for 2023 that will require budget 

consideration including but not limited to:  Watershed and forest health assessments with the completion 

of wetlands assessment this year and geofluvial assessments next year; Continue watershed management 

planning education and outreach in earnest; Stream assessment work as part of the Watershed 

Management Planning Process; Continue long-term water quality monitoring (and it was noted that 

short-term monitoring of Tomichi Creek, for uranium and organic carbons, might be needed to meet 

new standards as directed by the Water Quality Control and Cebolla Creek also may require some 

baseline data before new standards go into effect for rare earth mineral mining); Allocation for 

continuation of monitoring algae at Blue Mesa; Hiring a consultant and assembling stakeholders groups 

to continue the drought contingency planning process (and it was noted here that of the $325,000 

allocated for this process, $140,000 was funded by the Bureau of Reclamation); a budget line item for 

the Wet Meadows Program to provide matching funds for grants and/or possibly for workforce 

expenses; continuation of funding for Taylor River basin hydro modeling, including assistance for data 

collected from ASO flights; a possible remote generator site at Black Mesa and the GAP radar site; 

municipal source water protection planning/projects for Crested Butte and Mt. Crested Butte; and the 

Gunnison River Town Ditch inlet improvements. 

 

Director Rosemary Carroll asked if these priorities will be reflected in the draft budget?  Sonja replied 

“yes” and that the September Board meeting will be primarily focused on discussion of the budget.  

 



 

3 

 

Director Bill Nesbitt suggested the District seek funding from the City to help offset extra expenses for 

the Black Mesa remote cloud seeding generator. The District will be requesting participation from new 

potential parties to support the growing program. 

 

Assessor’s Property Valuations:  2022 property tax preliminary assessed valuations overall decreased 

from last year by $4,923,955 or -0.62%.   

• Gunnison County decreased from last year by $4,101,680 or -0.56%  

• Hinsdale County decreased from last year by $901,410 or -1.73% 

• Saguache County increased from last year by $79,135 or 1.81%. 

 

5. Presentation by Chris Sturm, Colorado Water Conservation Board on “Wildfire Ready 

Watershed” 

Chris Sturm explained that the CWCB was tasked with assessing wildfire risk and outcomes as a 

Legislative Directive resulting from Senate Bill 21-240 and that the CWCB independently added 

determining a framework that local communities can use to assess their local watershed and mitigate 

risk.  He said they came up with an equation of “VALUES (including water infrastructure, public 

infrastructure, property and life safety) plus RISK (including floods after fire, fluvial hazards, mud and 

debris flow, water quality impairments and hillslope erosion) = SUSCEPTIBILITY (including statewide 

level; relative risk by watershed and a framework for addressing risk and how this directly intersects.)   

 

Director Rosemary Carroll asked if the data they have collected would be available to the public as she 

felt this would be important information for our WMP Committee and the District. 

 

Chris said the CWCB has a goal of providing an overlay of all of the potential hazards over the post 

hazard data, along with maps, and that they hope to complete this by Thanksgiving.  He said the full 

presentation and updates, such as the overlays, will be available at 

https://www.wildfirereadywatersheds.com/ 

 

Director Julie Nania observed that the risk to the front range appeared to look much higher due to their 

larger population base and whether the CWCB could use our local assessment data to interface with the 

state’s data to give a clearer picture of risk given that much of their water supply comes from the 

western slope and given the lack of redundancy in water supply in rural areas.  Julie also wondered as 

the District turns towards the suite of options for mitigation efforts, how do you get the most bang for 

your buck dollarwise?   

 

https://www.wildfirereadywatersheds.com/


 

4 

 

Chris said that with the final report produced under the assessment, the CWCB will be producing a 

statewide map showing the risk for each area in the state and that he hopes that they can also push out 

basin-wide maps giving a more detailed risk assessment that should help eliminate factors like heavy 

areas of population. Chris agreed with Julie that factors such as redundancy, for instance, can be very 

important for more rural areas that might not have a backup water supply for drinking water.  Chris said 

he is happy to sit down with groups to talk about how best to implement the framework for their local 

community. 

 

Director Bill Nesbitt mentioned that he had some concerns about ground testing the data that came out 

of the state’s assessment as back in the 1980’s the data released by FEMA about the flood plain in 

Gunnison County turned out to be inaccurate and now property owners are faced with increased costs 

for flood insurance.  “Will there be truth testing of the statistics?” Bill asked. 

 

Chris replied that the CWCB is not a regulatory entity and that this study has no impact on property 

owners, such as an increase in insurance costs.  He also said they are “not creating risk” with their 

assessment. He pointed out that it is not the CWCB’s position to implement any sort of plans or 

outcomes from the study but that they are merely providing data and a framework for local authorities to 

address their own risk and possible mitigation plans.  Chris said that while the CWCB will not be 

directly involved in helping local watersheds with the assessment and mitigation process, they do have a 

tool and funding available for communities to be able to help themselves and his goal is to be sure that 

all entities around the state are aware of this.  He said they are happy to sit down with anyone to talk 

about local wildfire preparedness. 

 

General Manager Sonja Chavez asked Chris whether the CWCB used consultants or staff to conduct 

their assessment.  Chris answered that they used both - outside consultants to collect a lot of the data and 

in-house staff to assimilate the data.  Sonja also asked if the CWCB had considered the impact of small 

legacy mines in their assessment.  Chis replied that they did not look at mines on a statewide scale but 

that he thought this would be an important consideration for the local framework. 

 

6. BREAK  

 

7. Legal and Legislative Matters 

 

General Counsel John McClow reported that he has had some recent discussions with Mount Crested 

Butte Water and Sanitation District (Mt. CBWSD) about proposed improvements to Meridian Lake 

Reservoir.  John said that the Mt. CBWSD approached UGRWCD several years ago about this and an 

agreement was drawn up.  Then, due to some changes in management, the Mt. CBWSD went into hiatus 



 

5 

 

on the project and now they are ready to resume activities.  John said that Mt. CBWSD would be 

responsible for paying for and making improvements to Meridian Lake Reservoir, with the UGRWCD’s 

approval. The basic premise is that they would deliver additional water to Meridian from Washington 

Gulch via a canal or pipeline and thereby increase the firm yield of the reservoir. In exchange they 

would have the right to use some of that water. The UGRWCD has the option to participate in helping 

finance some of the improvements to the outlet works which can benefit our water augmentation 

program. The District will also jointly file for new water rights for the reservoir. John offered to put a 

packet together about the project for the Board to review at the October Board meeting. 

 

Director Bill Nesbitt asked if any funds need to be allocated for the 2023 budget for the project and John 

reiterated that all of the costs will be borne by the Mt. CBWSD unless we choose to help with 

improvements to the outlet works.  Sonja noted that she would have this as an item for the budget 

discussion.   

 

Director Rosemary Carroll noted that she was involved in the initial agreement process and that she 

recalled Mt. CBWSD proposing two possible options for improvements, one being the installation of a 

new pipeline and one being a canal.  Her recollection was that there were some concerns about gravity.  

John agreed and said that costs will have changed significantly since then as well, so the project will 

definitely need review. 

 

Counsel McClow also noted that the Bureau of Reclamation’s deadline for states to provide plans to 

address the Colorado River shortage came and went without any solutions.  He said all three lower 

basins states sent letters outlining how much each of them has already done towards conservation and 

that both California and Arizona noted that any further reductions must come from agriculture. Their 

replies were that the government could pay between $1,500 to $2,400 per acre to fallow agricultural 

acres, which the budget cannot support. John pointed out that even fallowing is only a short-term band-

aid and that there will have to be permanent reductions to shore up the system.  He noted that if we have 

another dry year in 2023 like we did in 2022, then in 2024 Lake Powell and Lake Mead could go to 

Deadpool and nobody downstream well get any water.  Basically, everything is at a stalemate right now.  

 

Director Don Sabrowski thanked John for the letter he wrote for the Gunnison Stockgrowers 

Association.  Don admitted he was still a little confused why the upper basin states are immune to action 

at this time by the Secretary of Interior.  John replied that there is no legal device nor legal obligation for 

the upper basin states to curtail their usage since the upper basin states are in compliance with the 

compact and are actually taking less water than the compact allows. 

 

8. Basin Water Supply Update 

 

Water Resource Specialist Bev Richards reported that at the recent Aspinall Meeting, forecasters are 

predicting that there is a 60 percent chance that the Gunnison River basin could move to a neutral or El 



 

6 

 

Nino weather pattern by Spring, which historically has brought more precipitation to the region.  At the 

meeting, they also noted that the water supply forecast changed from normal to below normal.  Bev said 

their model was incorrect and initially showed more snowpack, especially above Taylor Reservoir, than 

was actually received.      

 

9. General Manager and Staff/Committee Updates 

 

Treasurer’s Report:  Treasurer Bill Nesbitt reported he and Sonja met with the District’s bond advisor 

at the Colorado Water Congress meeting and agreed to enter into a trade for $250,000 US Treasuries 

yielding 3.375%.  Bill noted that we will continue to try to ladder the maturities of our investments.  He 

also noted that recession indicators are increasing. 

 

Executive Committee Meeting Update:   President Michelle Pierce reported the committee met on 

July 27th and performed senior staff reviews, which went well. 

 

General Manager’s Update Miscellaneous:  General Manager Sonja Chavez referred to her update in 

the packet.   

 

Cloud Seeding and Gap Weather Radar – Sonja reviewed the Upper Gunnison Basin’s Cloud 

Seeding Program and noted that the permit is up for renewal this year.  She noted there were issues 

with the manually operated site near Black Mesa this past year but that staff still believe this location 

could be very beneficial in terms of water production potential.  Sonja also noted that the addition of 

a gap weather radar site in this area could be tied to the basin’s remote generators to help alleviate 

such issues and could increase cloud seeding success using localized Gap Weather data.  Sonja asked 

for the Board’s blessing to continue support of adding a remote cloud seeding generator at Black 

Mesa and to proceed with pursuing gap weather radar near Blue Mesa.  She hopes to get a funding 

proposal to the Board as soon as possible. It was noted by several Board members that they were 

NOT in support of a Gap radar site on the back of a trailer and were promised a permanent site with 

permanent structure. 

 

Grant Program Update:  Jesse Kruthaupt of Trout Unlimited gave a Power Point presentation on 

the dam bank repairs and infrastructure improvements recently finished at Vouga Reservoir in 

cooperation with R & K Staheli Farms (funded through the District’s 2020 grant program). Jesse 

expressed his and the owner’s appreciation. 

 

Harmful Algae Bloom (HAB) grant request report:   CRWCD Community Funding partnership 

Director Amy Moyer has been very busy processing Accelerator Grants and has been delayed in 

providing an update on the status of the District’s HAB grant application.  Amy hopes to have a 

report ready in a couple of weeks.  

 



 

7 

 

2023 Farm Bill Session with Senator Michael Bennet:  Sonja reviewed the details included in her 

memo with respect to the public listening session held August 18 in Hotchkiss with Senator Michael 

Bennet.  Overall, she was pleased with the opportunity to share the input from UGRWCD’s 

constituents. 

 

Agricultural Assessments – General Manager Chavez reported that she hopes to have 15 to 20 

assessments completed by the end of the season and that she is pleased with the 95 percent success 

rate in assessed project moving forward to actual construction. There was a discussion of lack of 

information around line locations/direction of flow of ditches (only about 50% complete). The 

biggest concerns associated with wildfire are where key infrastructure are located in order to assess 

mitigation of risk. Andy, Don and Stacy can reach out to Stockgrowers and see if they have any 

input now or at the time of stakeholder meetings.  Basic question – Do you have any key 

infrastructure that you would be concerned about should there be a fire? 

 

Education and Outreach Committee – Committee Chair Sara Bergstrom reported that the 

committee met on August 11th and discussed where we are at with the current year action plan and 

preliminary plans for the 2023 Budget Year.  She noted that Sue Uerling will be developing a 

calendar for the 2023 Budget Year/Action Plan activities.  She said the committee is also hoping 

John McClow can develop a “Water 101” presentation and/or brochure that can help explain water 

rights to residents in the basin. There was also discussion about increasing the amount allocated from 

$300 to $500 for Mini-Grants in hopes that educators will find this amount to be more helpful when 

considering water education and outreach projects.   

 

Taylor Local User’s Group Update:  The August 9th Meeting Minutes were included in the Board 

Packet.  TLUG Chair Don Sabrowski reported that at the meeting the TLUG representatives 

approved keeping flows at 230 cfs through Labor Day to benefit the rafting/boating and agricultural 

users. The TLUG representatives met again virtually on August 17th and thanks to recent rains, it 

was determined that the flows could be maintained at 230 cfs through Labor Day. After Labor Day, 

the TLUG recommendation was to begin to reduce flows by 25 cfs increments until reaching the 82 

cfs winter flow rate in order to maintain a year-end storage of 68,200 acre feet in Taylor Reservoir.  

It was noted that a flow of 82 cfs will actually be better than last year’s winter flow rate of 75 cfs. 

The next meeting is tentatively scheduled for September 8, 2022 at 10 AM. 

 

Wet Meadows Program Update: 

Watershed Program Coordinator Cheryl Cwelich reviewed her memo included in the packet and 

reported that the 22 wicker weirs on BLM property in Monson Gulch were breached to reduce 

impacts to downstream water rights. The BLM is working with water commissioners to install two 

Parshall flumes to monitor stream flows through the impacted reach. Staff have reached out to the 

United States Geological Survey (USGS) to partner on a base flow study that could help to 

substantiate benefits of wet meadow restoration structures.     



 

8 

 

 

Scientific Endeavors:  Director Rosemary Carroll noted several upcoming conferences and 

seminars with respect to watersheds and watershed management:  (1) September 12-16 – Mountain 

Climb at RMBL regarding mountain hydrology, which Rosemary will attend in person; (2)  

September 12-16 – ASO Workshop – Bev and Rosemary will attend via Zoom; and (3) September 

21-23 – Department of Energy conference where proposed funding will be discussed – gearing up 

for next proposal renewal including funding of about $8M a year. Rosemary said they are likely 

moving into the Taylor and going into adaptive forest management and biology and geochemistry. 

Ken Williams would like to talk to the Board about this project. Rosemary thinks that there will be 

overlap with forest management and watershed health goals.  

 

STOR Committee Update:  Director Joellen Fonken reported she would pass the District’s 

representation baton to Sonja as Frank Kugel had originally participated as UGRWCD representative 

and she felt it was important for the General Manager to be that person.    

 

Colorado Water Congress Update:  This was the highest attended Summer Conference ever.  Those in 

attendance felt they learned a lot from the special Forest/Watershed Health session.  Those in attendance 

felt Senator Michael Bennet showed a firm commitment to watershed health. Heidi Gnall, who is 

running against Governor Polis made her pitch. 

 

10. Miscellaneous Matters 

 

The monthly reports and news articles were included in the packet. 

 

11. Citizens Comments 

 

No comments were presented.  

 

12. Future Meetings 

 

A list of upcoming meetings was included in the Board Packet.  Director Joellen Fonken noted that the 

location for the September Board meeting was to be announced and General Manager Chavez said she 

would let the Board know ASAP. 

 

13. Summary of Meeting Action Items 

 

(1)  Make the name change to Bethany Howell in the July 2022 Board Minutes 

(2)  Have future interns give a presentation to the Board about their accomplishments and 

experiences 

(3)  Cloud Seeding – Reach out to other area constituents for consideration of funding support. 



 

9 

 

(4)  Invite the Forest Service to make a presentation on their plans for local near-term forest 

management activities. 

(5) For the October meeting, John McClow will put together a packet for the Board’s review on 

possible improvements to Meridian Lake by the Mt. Crested Butte Water Sanitation District 

(6) John McClow and Andy Spann, with input from Stacy McPhail, will discuss getting input from 

area ag users regarding their concerns to ag infrastructure if there were a fire in their sub-basin  

(7) Check with Kenneth Hurst Williams on possibly presenting findings from his recent study and 

give him opportunity to get input on research/science needs of the District at the October Board 

meeting 

(8) Sonja will provide Rosemary Carroll with priorities for the District with respect to possible 

funding through the Department of Energy for their studies to commence along Taylor 

River/Reservoir 

(9) Sonja will convene the Finance Committee for a preliminary review of the 2023 budget. 

 

14. Adjournment 

   

President Michelle Pierce adjourned the August 29, 2022, meeting at 8:25 p.m. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

 

___________________________ 

John Perusek, Secretary 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

 

___________________________ 

Michelle Pierce, President 

 

 















































AGENDA ITEM 4
2023 Budget





CODOS WY 2023 Proposal  8/31/22 

Jeff Derry 
Executive Director 
 
Mail: 
P.O. Box 190 
Silverton, CO 
USA 81433 
 
Center: 
1428 Greene Street 
Suite 103 
Silverton, CO 
 
Telephone: 
Office: (970) 387-5080 
Cell: (970) 231-6595 
 
Website: 
www.snowstudies.org 
 
Email: 
jderry@snowstudies.org 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Colorado Dust-on-Snow Program 
Water Year 2023 Funding Request  
 
To:  Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District      Attn: Sonja Chavez 
Date:   August 31, 2022  
From:  Center for Snow and Avalanche Studies  
Contact:   Jeff Derry - Executive Director, CSAS office (970) 387-5080                                        

cell (970) 231-6595 
Ref: Proposed Colorado Dust-on-Snow (CODOS) Program Services for WY 2023 
 
 

 
Program Summary 

 
The Center for Snow and Avalanche Studies (CSAS), based in Silverton, conducts the 
Colorado Dust-on-Snow program (CODOS) at its Senator Beck Basin Study Area (SBB) 
at Red Mountain Pass and at ten additional sites located throughout the Colorado 
Mountains.  Desert dust transported from adjacent arid regions is deposited on the 
Colorado snowpack, drastically altering spring runoff and storage of water in mountain 
snow. It has been estimated that the snowmelt season in Colorado is ending twenty-five 
to fifty days earlier than in years prior to receiving dust that is found in our snowpack 
today.  The primary result is snowmelt contributed streamflow occurs earlier in the 
season with periods of higher discharge rates and less overall snowmelt volume. With 
changing climate and increased development in the Desert Southwest, aridification and 
dust transport will continue to be a major driver of change.   
 
CODOS is an applied science program that serves the mountain science community and 
regional resource managers by hosting and conducting interdisciplinary research and 
sustaining integrative 24/7/365 mountain systems monitoring.  Weather, snowpack 
(dust), radiation, soils, plant communities and hydrologic signals of regional climate 
trends are among the vast array of data collected, providing one of the highest elevation  
continuous and comprehensive mountain system dataset available. 

 
 
 

http://www.snowstudies.org/
mailto:jderry@snowstudies.org


CODOS WY 2023 Proposal  8/31/22 

CODOS Products and Activities  
 
- Update and Dust Alert products, based on our site-specific observations of snowpack and dust-

on-snow conditions at all CODOS sites, are posted to the CODOS website 
(http://www.codos.org/#codos) and/or provided directly to your office via email. The record of 
CODOS program products has grown over the years. Site-specific reference pages contain 
archived CODOS products, including all prior Updates, Alerts, and other data analyses for your 
quick, one-stop reference.   

- CODOS WY2023 Updates will be published to the CODOS program website at timely intervals 
throughout the winter and spring, describing conditions at SBB and the other ten CODOS sites 
(listed below).  CSAS will perform fieldwork at these sites documenting dust-on-snow layers and 
other snowpack conditions, monitor associated SNOTEL sites, and evaluate regional hydrologic 
data.  These time series of observation-based analyses are performed at each site during 3 or 4 
circuits of this network each spring, depending on dust events and snowcover duration.  CODOS 
will contact program participants and other local observers for dust event observations.  CODOS 
will iteratively evaluate SWE, dust-on-snow, and spring weather conditions in order to identify 
prior CODOS period of record hydrologic patterns in dust-enhanced spring runoff behavior.  
Occasional e-mail Dust Alerts will provide “heads up” notifications regarding anticipated or 
actual dust deposition events already in progress.  CSAS will also provide time-to-time e-mail 
and phone briefings to agency personnel, tailored to their watersheds. CODOS/CSAS also 
receives numerous queries from local, regional and national/international media regarding dust-
on-snow conditions, research, and impacts, and responds to those as feasible and appropriate.        

- Ongoing and new research initiatives are also pursued, in support of CODOS’s primary purposes. 
During WY2023, CSAS/CODOS will continue its close collaboration with the U.S. Geologic 
Survey in Denver, in support of their dust research program on the Colorado Plateau.  That 
program seeks to better understand the sources of dust emission on the Plateau as well as the 
physical properties of dust and effect of those properties on snowmelt.  CODOS will continue our 
dust-on-snow sampling efforts and work with USGS in developing their Colorado Plateau 
research.  USGS processes our mass loading samples at no cost to CODOS.  This past year we 
discovered microplastics in the snow samples going back to 2011, opening a whole new avenue 
of inquiry of impacts on or mountains and water supply. 

- This year the USGS thru the Next Generation Water Observing System (NGWOS) deployed a 
variety of sensors – including a snow water equivalent scale – at the SBB 12,200’ monitoring 
site.  This is being done at a variety of sites in the Upper Colorado Basin. What makes this 
deployment unique is CSAS has been collecting these variables for nearly 20 years, hence when 
these new sensors report the near real-time data we will know if it is a high/average/low value, 
making it immediately useful and applicable for water managers.  

- A very exciting project started in WY2017.  Zoe Courville with the Cold Regional and Research 
Engineering Laboratory (CRREL) began a 5-year project titled “Dark Materials in Snow and 
Their Impacts on Preferential Sublimation and Surface Roughness”.  This project includes a lot 
of sampling and time spent at SASP.  It involves some really interesting stuff; dust, microbes, 
surface roughness and albedo, sublimation, and how this information can better inform remote 
detection methods.     



CODOS WY 2023 Proposal  8/31/22 

- Stephen Fassnacht with CSU and his students continue to monitor wetlands near Swamp Angel 
Study Plot. The project is titled “Determining the Contribution of High-Elevation Wetlands to 
Baseflow in the Senator Beck Basin, Colorado.” The researchers are characterizing wetland 
locations near SASP, by measuring water levels and specific conductance and by incorporating 
CSAS’s snowpack and streamflow data, to determine contribution of wetlands on downstream 
flow.  Wetland/streamflow relationships, particularly the influence of wetlands on variations in 
baseflow, will be important for downstream water managers, researchers, and stakeholders to 
understand water quality and the quantity of water available in streams in late summer. 

These ongoing research support activities compliment the primary focus of CODOS in the coming 
year – providing more information about our Colorado snowpack and increasing our information 
about dust-on-snow and how these conditions will influence snowmelt and spring runoff conditions 
in watersheds throughout the state. 

 
Facilities 
 
Based out of Silverton, CSAS operates a comprehensive Mountain System Monitoring (MSM) 
program at SBB just above Red Mountain Pass, employing extensive instrumentation and other 
infrastructure, and rigorous field observations.  CODOS is an integral element of the MSM program 
serving as the program’s primary sentry site where the most intensive dust-on-snow monitoring, 
sampling, and measurements occur. SBB is a headwater catchment of Red Mountain Creek and the 
Uncompahgre River and is immediately adjacent to headwaters of the Animas and San Miguel river 
watersheds.  SBB is also just 13 miles northeast of headwaters of the Dolores River and 16 miles 
northwest of the headwaters of the Rio Grande River.  

WY 2023   Funding Request 
 
With this proposal CSAS requests that the Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District 
sustain its support for CODOS at the $3,500 level this year. The CODOS program depends on 
equitably shared support from Colorado’s water supply management agencies, and CSAS and our 
other CODOS program funders greatly appreciate your organization’s vital past support.  Please see 
funding requests pending or already awarded (below) as we approach WY2023, illustrating how 
funding from each program participant is essential to our operating budget.   
With the COVID pandemic creating a budget crisis for the state of Colorado, a large share of CSAS’ 
typical grant support through the Colorado Water Conservation Board (CWCB) was absent the last 
few years.  Fortunately, we received a PPP loan that helped meet our budget needs. And starting this 
year we are pleased to announce a 4-year WSRF grant awarded to the CODOS Program.  This award 
is for $60/year and will go a long way in stabilizing our budget.  The grant would not have been 
possible without the overwhelming support of Colorado Basin Roundtables.  Thank You! 

 
 
 
 
 
 



CODOS WY 2023 Proposal  8/31/22 

CODOS Monitoring Sites 
 
The following dust-on-snow monitoring sites are located close to NRCS SNOTEL sites and are 
referred to by the adjoining SNOTEL site name.  As in years past, CODOS sites in WY2023 are: 

• Senator Beck Basin Study Area 
• Park Cone 
• Spring Creek Pass  
• Wolf Creek Pass  
• Hoosier Pass 
• Grizzly Peak  
• Berthoud Summit 
• Willow Creek Pass 
• Rabbit Ears Pass  
• McClure Pass 
• Grand Mesa – Skyway  

 

Water Year 2023 Requested Funding 
 

The following table presents a roster of CODOS funding requests to agencies for WY2023.  An 
additional list of funding proposals pending in support of CSAS’s Mountain System Monitoring 
program and SBB operations is also shown.  These additional funds are also essential to sustain 
SBB infrastructure and CSAS operations. 

 

CODOS Program Funding 
Requested         
WY 2023 

Bureau of Reclamation – Lower Colorado Region 10,000 
Bureau of Reclamation – Western Colorado Area Office 13,000 
City of Grand Junction 2,500 
Colorado River Water Conservation District 25,000 
Colorado Water Conservation Board - WSRF 60,000 
Denver Water – Raw Water Supply 10,000 
Dolores Water Conservancy District 1,000 
Rio Grande Water Conservation District 5,000 
San Luis Valley Water Conservancy District 1,000 
Southwestern Water Conservation District 7,000 
Tri-County Water Conservancy District 5,000 
Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District 3,500 

Total CODOS Support 143,000 
Additional proposed MSM Program and SBB Operating Support   
Denver Water – Climate Change Program  5,000 
Friends of CSAS – private contributions 4,000 
Grand Mesa, Uncompahgre, and Gunnison National Forest 3,000 
Research User Fees 12,500 

 





 
September 19, 2022 

Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District 
Attention: Board of Directors 
210 W. Spencer Avenue, Suite B 
Gunnison, Colorado 81230 

Subject: 2023 Funding Request from the Coal Creek Watershed Coalition 

Dear Members of the Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District Board: 

The Coal Creek Watershed Coalition (CCWC) is extremely grateful for the Upper Gunnison River Water 
Conservancy District’s (UGRWCD) generous support of our organization in 2022. UGRWCD’s Watershed 
Coalition Support Funds, $10,000.00, were matched with nearly $135,000.00 from other partners. In 
2022 CCWC continued water quality monitoring in the Coal Creek Watershed, assisted the Town of 
Crested Butte and County to evaluate water quality issues associated with the Keystone Mine, and 
continued community outreach and education efforts. UGRWCD’s funding is critical to CCWC’s success. 
In 2023, CCWC proposes to use UGRWCD Watershed Coalition Support Funds for the following: 

• Grant Writing and Fundraising: CCWC has limited funding to secure grants to support projects to 
improve water quality and watershed health. Funds provided by the UGRWCD would be used to 
secure grants from local, state, and federal agencies; and to increase donations. In 2023, our 
fundraising efforts will focus on the Gossan Restoration Project. CCWC requests $3,500 for grant 
writing and fundraising. 

• Long-term Water Quality Monitoring Program: CCWC would like to use funds from the UGRWCD 
to fund staff time and purchase supplies for our water quality monitoring programs. These funds 
would be matched, with approximately $40,000 in additional funds, through existing 
partnerships. CCWC requests $4,000 from the UGRWCD to support water quality monitoring. 

• Administrative Duties: As the diversity and geographic scope of CCWC’s projects increase so do 
our administrative duties. Administrative funds would be used for meeting facilitation, website 
maintenance, and project development. CCWC requests $5,000 from the UGRWCD to support 
administrative duties. 

CCWC’s request for 2023 totals $12,500.00. CCWC appreciates the support from the UGRWCD. I am 
happy to answer any questions you may have regarding CCWC’s activities. We look forward to sharing 
our annual report with the UGRWD later this year. 

Sincerely, 

 

Ashley Bembenek 
Executive Director 
Coal Creek Watershed Coalition 
970-251-0029 



AGENDA ITEM 5
BREAK



AGENDA ITEM 6
John McClow & Sonja Chavez (UGRWCD)

and Erin Wilson (Wilson Water Group) present 
Upper Gunnison Basin Hydrology,

Compact Risk, & UGRWCD Risk Reduction



AGENDA ITEM 7
Conversation with Kevin Rein, State Engineer 

and Director of the Division of Water Resource, 
Colorado Water Conservation Board



AGENDA ITEM 8
Legal and Legislative Matters



AGENDA ITEM 9
General Manager Update



AGENDA ITEM 9
Treasurer's Report



MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:   UGRWCD Board of Directors  

FROM:  Sonja Chavez, General Manager 

DATE:  September 19, 2022  

SUBJECT:  General Manager Updates (September) 

 

I. Treasurer’s Report 

 

II. General Manager’s Report 

 

A. Miscellaneous Updates 

 

A.1 Upper Gunnison Basin Cloud Seeding Program 

The District distributed a letter to existing and proposed new partners for the Upper 

Gunnison Basin Cloud Seeding Program (Exhibit A). Purpose was to raise additional 

funding in support of the expanding program.  

 

A.2. Gap Weather Radar Update 

The UGRWCD submitted a letter of comment to the Gunnison Board of County 

Commissioners in support of the Gap Weather Radar site on Black Mesa (see attached).  

 

A.3. Harmful Algal Bloom Grant Request to the Community Funding Partnership 

(CFP) 

The UGRWCD was successful in securing a CFP award in the amount of $41,018 in 

support of the US Geological Survey and National Park Service Harmful Algal Bloom 

study. This award makes the funding package for the project complete. 

 

B. Watershed Management Planning (WMP) Update 

There was no meeting of the WMP Committee this month. There was no meeting of the 

WMP. Staff will give their quarterly update at the October meeting. 

C. Education & Outreach Committee (E/O) Update 

 

There was no meeting of the E/O Committee this month. Staff will give their quarterly 

update at the October meeting. 

 

D. Taylor Local Users Group (TLUG) Taylor Local Users Group 

 



There was no meeting of the TLUG this month. The group kept with their August plan to 

reduce flows by 25 cfs every 24 hours beginning the evening of September 5th until 

reaching the estimated winter flow rate of 83 cfs. 

 

E. Wet Meadows Update 

There are no significant Wet Meadow Program updates this month.  Staff will give their 

quarterly update to the Board at the October meeting. 

 

F. In Stream Flow Calls 

F.1. Slate River (From Commissioner Rozman 09-16-22): The CWCB requested 

administration of their Slater River ISF water right on September 2nd. Over the past two 

weeks, I administered the 11 augmentation plans activated by this call. The largest 

augmentation releases were 7.5 acre feet from Meridian Lake aka Long Lake for the 

UGRWCD’s basin-wide augmentation plan and 4 acre feet from Meridian Lake Park 

Reservoir No.1 for MTCBW&S’s operations. Thanks to both those organizations for 

making timely releases. A combination pond releases head gate bypass and dry-up 

credits from the other augmentation plans added another 0.5 acre feet to the Slate River. 

There will likely be another round of reservoir releases next month if the monsoons don’t 

return.  

The Breem Ditch Washington Gulch ISF water right is for 0.25cfs for the month of 

September and has been completely satisfied all month.  

 

F.2. Lake Fork (From DNR, Ryan Unterreiner): Release of 5 cfs to maintain 35 cfs In 

Stream Flow beginning 9/19/22 and continuing through September. This equates to 109 

AF of their 200 AF pool in Lake San Cristobal.  

 

G. Miscellaneous Board Member Updates 



210 West Spencer Avenue, Suite B • Gunnison, Colorado 81230 

Telephone (970) 641-6065 • www.ugrwcd.org  

Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District 

September 19, 2022 

Dear Upper Gunnison Cloud Seeding Stakeholders, 

The Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District (District) is writing today to inform your 

agency/organization of a proposed expansion of the Upper Gunnison Basin Cloud Seeding Program 

(Program) beginning this fall of 2022 and to ask for your annual financial support.  Cloud seeding is one 

of the cheapest forms of augmentation water for our basin ($0.53 per acre-foot) and can provide critical 

water that supports Gunnison River basin flows, Blue Mesa Reservoir and our local economy.  

As background, the Upper Gunnison Basin Cloud Seeding Program was started by Gunnison County in 

the 2002-2003 winter season as a response to significant drought conditions occurring throughout our 

watershed.  North American Weather Consultants (NAWC) was selected as the contractor and continues 

to work with the District to carry-out this important Program.  

The current Program involves the use of 15 cloud seeding generators (Figure 1. Green pins) including a 

remote seeding generator located at Lake Irwin.  As of April 1, 2022, SNOTEL sites in the Upper 

Gunnison River Basin reported snowpack water content ranging from about 79 percent to 123 percent of 

average and precipitation ranged from 83 percent to 129 percent in the basin.  Based upon analysis, 

NAWC estimates a 7 to 12 percent increase to the basin’s April 1st water content associated with the 

cloud seeding sites, which falls within the 5 to 15 percent increase estimated by the Weather Modification 

Association. 

Figure 1. Generator Sites for Upper Gunnison Cloudseeding Program

Exhibit A



210 West Spencer Avenue, Suite B • Gunnison, Colorado 81230 

Telephone (970) 641-6065 • www.ugrwcd.org  

An additional manual generator (Figure 1 above, red pin) was installed on Black Mesa in the 2021-22 

season, just north of Blue Mesa Reservoir; however, there were accessibility and volunteer operational 

issues, therefore this site has become a candidate for a new remotely operated cloud seeding generator 

and has been a long desired addition.   

The District and NAWC believes a remote generator placed at Black Mesa will do more than any other 

program enhancement, in terms of water augmentation benefits in other portions of the Gunnison Range 

and importantly to Blue Mesa Reservoir and as shown in Figure 2 below. NAWC analysis indicates that 

the generator will have significant direct benefits to northern and southern tributaries to Blue Mesa 

Reservoir and to eastern tributaries due to positive downwind cloud seeding impacts. 

Figure 2. Area of impact from the proposed new remote generator at Black Mesa (in white). 

The remote generator would permit cloud seeding during almost all storm periods that impact the Upper 

Gunnison River watershed. Seeding could occur during periods with winds ranging from northerly to 

southerly. Additionally, as this generator would be located at 9,500 feet, it will be in-cloud, meaning that 

100% of the seeding solution released will make it into the storm system. The generator will be well 

above any inversions that occur during the winter months, and uninhibited in its ability to seed storm 

systems. The Remote Generator also releases 2-4 times the concentration of seeding solution as our 

manual generators, greatly augmenting the impact of a single site location.  

Due to these significant benefits, our Board of Directors (with financial assistance from the Colorado 

Water Conservation Board) made the important decision to fund the initial set-up and infrastructure costs 

associated with a remotely operated cloud seeding generator on Black Mesa in the amount of 

approximately $67,600. The proposed costs for fabrication and first-year installation for the remote 

generator at the Black Mesa site are provided in the Table 1 below. 



210 West Spencer Avenue, Suite B • Gunnison, Colorado 81230 

Telephone (970) 641-6065 • www.ugrwcd.org  

Table 1. Cost of Fabrication and Initial Set-up of Remote Generator at Black Mesa 

Line Item Description Unit Price Total 

1 Remote Generator Fabrication $40,000 $40,000 

2 Meteorological and Technical Support 

(approximate) 
$1,500/month $9,000 

3 First-year Remote Generator Set-Up $12,000 $12,000 

4 Project Take-Down (if needed) $3,000 $3,000 

5 Estimated Remote Generator usage (80 hours) $45/hour $3,600 

6 Maintenance (all parts warrantied for first 12 

months) 
$0 $0 

Totals Initial Fabrication and Set-Up $67,600 

Commitment from CWCB ($25,000) 

UGRWCD Commitment $42,600 

The success of our Program is due to our strong community partners and while the District is not asking 

for additional funding in support of the Black Mesa installation and infrastructure, we are seeking new 

annual financial contributors to help support our expanding Program.   

Table 2 summarizes our 2022-23 annual operation and maintenance costs with the new Black Mesa 

remote generator. 

Table 2. Estimated annual program costs for the 2022-23 season with the new Black Mesa site. 

Line 

Item 

Description Unit Price Total 

1 Priority Set-up $15,000 $15,000 

2 Monthly Fixed Costs – 5 months $11,550 $57,750 

3 O & M of Lake Irwin Remote Generator – 5 Months $1,600 $8,000 

4 Project Take-Down $7,800 $7,800 

5 Project Final Report $5,000 $5,000 

6 Estimated Generator Use – 2,400 hrs/$11 hour $11.00 $26,400 

Totals $119,950 

Table 3 below identifies our existing and proposed new annual financial partners and their contributions. 

Table 3. Existing and Proposed Financial Partners. 

Existing Financial Partners Contribution Amount 

Gunnison County $10,000 

Gunnison County Stockgrowers $250 

Vail Resorts $2,000 

East River Sanitation District $2,000 

City of Gunnison $2,000 

Town of Mt. Crested Butte $3,000 

Mt. Crested Butte Water and Sanitation $2,000 

Antelope Hills Water $500 

Dos Rios Water System $2,000 

Colorado Water Conservation Board $67,000 

Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy 

District 
$23,210 

Subtotal: $113,960 



210 West Spencer Avenue, Suite B • Gunnison, Colorado 81230 

Telephone (970) 641-6065 • www.ugrwcd.org  

Proposed New Financial Partners Proposed Contribution Amount 

Town of Crested Butte $2,000 

Hinsdale County $500 

Saguache County $500 

Met Rec District $500 

Gunnison Nordic $500 

1% Open Space $500 

Crested Butte Avalanche Center $500 

Uncompahgre Valley Water Users $500 

Colorado River District $2,000 

Subtotal: $7,000 

GRAND TOTAL (2021-2022) $121,460 

In closing, the Upper Gunnison Basin Cloud Seeding Program is requesting your support for continued 

operation and expansion of our Upper Gunnison Basin Cloudseeding Program.  This program augments 

our local and regional water supplies with direct benefits to all downstream water users, protects local 

water uses and water rights, and supports our local, regional and state economies. We greatly appreciate 

our on-going Program partners and look forward to working with new partners.  

The District hopes that you will give this request your serious consideration. If you have any questions, 

please feel free to contact me by emailing me at schavez@ugrwcd.org or calling (970) 641-6065. 

Sincerely, 

Sonja Chavez, General Manager 

mailto:schavez@ugrwcd.org


September 13, 2022 

Gunnison County  

Land Use Planning Department 

221 N. Wisconsin Street 

Gunnison, Colorado 81230 

Dear Ms. Sabbato, 

The Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District is writing to express our strong support for the 

installation of a local gap weather radar station on Big Mesa in Gunnison County, Colorado. 

A significant portion of our Colorado River headwaters are covered by mountain peaks over 10,000 feet 

that obstruct existing weather radar systems.  Gap radar is important for water management entities like 

the Upper Gunnison District, Colorado River District, Colorado Water Conservation Board, Upper 

Colorado River Commission, U.S. Bureau of Reclamation, and others to understand, monitor, and adapt 

to climate variability extremes.  This includes acquisition of weather data in support of hydroclimatic 

monitoring networks that help estimate snowfall, river flows, cloud seeding opportunities, and national 

hydrologic research efforts.  These include research and studies being conducted by the Department of 

Energy, National Center for Atmospheric Research (NCAR), University of Colorado Atmospheric 

Research (UCAR – WRF Hydro Model), and Department of Interior (United States Geological Survey, 

Next Generation Water Observing Systems) where the Upper Gunnison and Colorado River Basins in 

Colorado were identified as a national priority in 2020.  Gap radar data also greatly supports refinement 

of river inflow forecasting models for our federal reservoirs (Aspinall Unit), drought planning, flood 

forecasting, and avalanche danger predictions.  Finally, it also provides critical information that supports 

our local economies including localized weather data that benefits agricultural practices, ski area 

operations, tourism, snow plowing operations, airport services, and emergency services like wildland 

fire fighting, highway patrol, ambulance services, and flight for life.  

In closing, we remind residents and commissioners that the Colorado River Basin and the western U.S. 

are currently in crisis due to on-going aridification.  We need accurate and reliable weather data to 

support our local and regional water resource management planning efforts and we ask that you approve 

installation of a gap weather data site on Big Mesa, Gunnison County, Colorado.   

Sincerely, 

Sonja Chavez, General Manager 

Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District 

Exhibit B



AGENDA ITEM 9
Scientific Endeavors



AGENDA ITEM 9
STOR Committee Update



AGENDA ITEM 10
Miscellaneous Matters



����������	
�����������������
���������������
��������� �!�"#$ �%#�&'(�)���*"+�#�,��-./�0����
�1�.23�������
�����
����������4����
�0���
��	
��5����67��89"": %";:�%�<"# !�"#$ �%#�&'("&�����������=�����>����� ?8���@- ����@-�����A������=�����B����� ?8���@- �?C�@-�����?������=����������� ?8���@- �?>�@-������������=�����A����� ��- ��-������������=����D������ ��- ��-�5����67��������3
��E >�D�@-�F����
0��G
����3
��E �8�D�G-�H�����
�/���E �8�D�G-�I�	���6��F�
�0���
�E DB8A�G-�H
0��J;#K���LMMN"��	
�������6
���E��1���8��7�H
0������
		���������O0�������
	E�P�Q#""N
R#�<N"#�����N'++�#�"&,���G���
�
	��S�4�1��

4��.��
6�1�T���	
U�
��5�	�����
������������	�������V�

@�
	�G�S�������V���������U�����4���V�	���0���8WXY�Z[\�]\



9 <---- Month to Summarize (change this number to look at a different month)
PRELIMINARY - SUBJECT TO REVISION

Daily Summary for Month --> Sep

1st Fill  2nd Fill  Other Aspinall BP Accnt AU Accnt 1st Fill Contract Tot 1st fill

Day of 
Month

Silver Jack 
Reservoir & 
Juniors In 

Priority 
(1=Yes, 
0=No)

TP 
Releases 
from TP 
1st Fill 
(1=Yes, 
0=No)

Excess 
Released 
TP Inflow 
and AU 

Nat 
Inflow 
(cfs)

Gun 
Tunnel 
(GT) 

Shortage 
after AU 

Nat 
Inflow 

and TP 
Inflow 
(cfs)

3-Day 
Average 
Excess 

TP Inflow 
and AU 

Nat 
Inflow 
(cfs)

3-Day Ave. 
GT 

Shortage 
after AU 

Nat Inflow 
and TP 
Inflow    
(cfs)

TP Res. 
Content 

(af)

TP - 
USGS 
outflow 

(cfs)

TP 
Compute
d Inflow 

(cfs)

1st Fill - 
Storage -

in TP 
(af)

2nd Fill -
Storage 
- in TP 

(af)

Other 
Account 
Storage 
in TP - 
Storage 

- (af)

AU 
Storag
e in TP 
- (af)

SJ Res 
Content 

(af)

SJ Inflow 
to 

Reservoir 
Storage 

(cfs)

BP - 
Storage - 
in SJ (af)

AU 
Water - 

Storage - 
in SJ (af)

BM Res 
Content 

(af)

MP Res 
Content 

(af)

CR Res 
Content 

(af)

AU 
Change 

In 
Storage 

(af)

Computed 
rel from 
CR (cfs)

AU inflow 
below TP 

& with 
AU Aug 
Rel (cfs) #REF!

UGRWC
D 

Contract 
water     
(af)

Gun. 
River 
below 
East 

Portal    
(cfs)

Total 
Gunnison 

Tunnel 
Divs (cfs)

GT Divs - 
AU inflow 
minus TP 
released 

inflow 
(cfs)

GT Divs - 
TP 

Released 
Inflow 
(cfs)

GT Divs - 
SJ 

Storage 
Inflow by 
AU Exch 

(cfs)

GT Divs - 
UGRWC

D 
Contract 
Water 

Rel    
(cfs)

GT Divs - 
Rel from 
2nd Fill 

for 
Rec/Fish  

(cfs)

GT Divs - 
1st Fill 

Credit in 
BM     
(cfs) #REF!

Remain. 
1st Fill 

Credits in 
TP and 

AU      
(af)

(1) (2) (3) (5) (6) (7) (8) (11) (14) (15) (19) (25) (30) (34) (36) (39) (43) (47) (49) (77) (100) (124) (125) (127) #REF! #REF! (128) (131) (132) (133) (134) (135) (136) (137) #REF! (140)

1 1 1     70,146 229 100     5,048 0 5,048 0  110,634 16,691  1,488    377 1,111   0 0     
2 1 1     69,874 228 100     4,885 0 4,885 0  110,548 16,729  1,402    341 1,061   0 0     
3 1 1     69,590 228 93     4,715 0 4,715 0  110,462 16,779  1,382    340 1,042   0 0     
4 1 1     69,306 228 93     4,545 0 4,545 0  110,336 16,718  1,383    339 1,044   0 0     
5 1 1     69,022 216 81     4,370 0 4,370 0  110,587 16,639  1,383    338 1,045   0 0     
6 1 1     68,801 185 82     4,188 0 4,188 0  110,673 16,685  1,383    337 1,046   0 0     
7 1 1     68,628 159 80     4,014 0 4,014 0  112,244 16,557  1,386    337 1,049   0 0     
8 1 1     68,501 133 78     3,837 0 3,837 0  112,999 16,557  1,409    358 1,051   0 0     
9 1 1     68,422 107 76     3,666 0 3,666 0  113,823 16,414  1,460    409 1,051   0 0     
10 1 1     68,344 100 68     3,488 0 3,488 0  114,497 16,037  1,500    439 1,061   0 0     
11 1 1     68,157 100 14     3,306 0 3,306 0  114,377 15,917  1,500    439 1,061   0 0     
12 1 1     68,079 100 69     3,120 0 3,120 0  115,280 15,800  1,500    439 1,061   0 0     
13 1 1     68,017 100 77     2,938 0 2,938 0  115,280 15,811  1,502    441 1,061   0 0     
14 1 1      0              0    0 0    0     
15 1 1      0              0    0 0    0     
16 1 1      0              0    0 0    0     
17 1 1      0              0    0 0    0     
18 1 1      0              0    0 0    0     
19 1 1 0   0  
20 1 1 0   0  
21 1 1 0   0  
22 1 1 0   0  
23 1 1 0   0  
24 1 1 0   0  
25 1 1 0   0  
26 1 1 0   0  
27 1 1 0   0  
28 1 1 0   0  
29 1 1 0   0  
30 1 1 0   0  
31                                    

Total 30 30 0 0 0 0 2,112 1,012 0 0 18,680 0 4,934 13,746 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Tot (af) 0 0 0 0 4,188 2,008 0 0 37,051 0 9,787 27,265 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Min 1 1 0 0 0 0 68,017 0 14 0 0 0 0 2,938 0 2,938 0 0 110,336 15,800 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Max 1 1 0 0 0 0 70,146 229 100 0 0 0 0 5,048 0 5,048 0 0 115,280 16,779 0 1,502 0 0 0 441 1,111 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Annual Summary (all values in ac-ft)  Note: Reservoir content is the end of the month content 
(days) (days) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af)

Nov 30 30     58,737 4,470 4,632     1,713 300 1,713 0  110,430 15,977  20,025   19,420 604   0     
Dec 31 31     58,695 4,564 4,521     1,790 166 1,790 0 231,059 105,687 16,102  20,080   18,851 1,229   0     
Jan 31 31     58,327 4,412 4,043     1,880 90 1,880 0 236,731 104,652 16,186  19,520   18,453 1,067   0     
Feb 28 28     57,749 4,096 3,518     1,870 10 1,870 0  105,444 15,052  17,228   16,989 239   0     
Mar 31 31     57,303 4,581 4,135     1,977 107 1,977 0  108,948 16,820  32,745   24,617 8,128   0     
Apr 30 30     59,219 5,945 7,861     4,629 2,652 4,629 0  111,643 16,753  54,717   23,481 31,237   0     
May 31 31     74,021 11,966 26,989     13,147 8,806 13,147 0  110,673 16,481  107,604   48,437 59,167   0     
Jun 30 30     80,852 18,929 26,111     12,428 127 12,428 0  109,718 16,853  82,474   20,811 61,663   0     
Jul 31 31     76,738 15,449 11,809     9,065 0 9,065 0  110,870 15,418  92,489   27,589 64,900   0     
Aug 31 31     70,418 14,146 8,360     5,202 0 5,202 0  110,807 16,516  97,012   30,778 66,234   0     
Sep 30 30     4,188    37,051   9,787 27,265       
Oct 31 31 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  0 0 0 0 0 0 0  
Total 365 365 0 0 0 0 92,746 101,979 12,257 0 580,945 0 259,212 321,733 0 0 0 0 0 0
Min 28 28 0 0 0 0 57,303 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,790 0 1,790 0 231,059 104,652 15,052 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Max 31 31 0 0 0 0 80,852 18,929 26,989 0 0 0 0 13,147 8,806 13,147 0 236,731 111,643 16,853 0 107,604 0 0 48,437 66,234 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Type of Water Diverted into Tunnel

TO

Taylor Park Reservoir Aspinall Unit GUNNISON TUNNEL ALLOCATION
River Call Average Flow Reservoir

Silver Jack Reservoir
Reservoir Reservoir Contents Total Aspinall Unit Inflow Streamflow and Divs





















































































































































AGENDA ITEM 11
Citizen Comments



AGENDA ITEM 12
Future Meetings



FUTURE MEETINGS/EVENTS

 Wet Meadows Restoration Tour - October 7, 2022 at 9 AM
 Sustaining CO Watersheds Conference - October 11-13, 2022, Avon, CO
 Watershed Management Planning Mtg - October 12, 2022 at 1:30 PM
 Gunnison Basin Roundtable Meeting - October 17, 2022 at 3 PM
 UGRWCD Board Meeting - October 24, 2022 at 5:30 PM
 Watershed Management Planning Mtg - November 9, 2022 at 1:30 PM
 Veteran's Day, UGRWCD Offices Closed - November 11, 2022
 Thanksgiving Holiday, UGRWCD Offices Closed, November 24-25, 2022

  



AGENDA ITEM 13
Summary of Action Items



AGENDA ITEM 14
Adjournment


	Agenda - September 26, 2022
	Agenda Item 3 - Consent Agenda Items
	Approval of August 29, 2022 Minutes
	Monthly Budget Summary
	Consideration of Expenses

	Agenda Item 4 - 2023 Budget
	Discussion of Initial Draft 2023 Budget
	Funding Requests for 2023

	Agenda Item 5 - BREAK
	Agenda Item 6 - John McClow, Sonja Chavez (UGRWCD) 
and Erin Wilson (Wilson Water Group) present Upper Gunnison Basin Hydrology, 
Compact Risk, & UGRWCD Risk Reduction
	Agenda Item 7 - Kevin Rein, State Engineer and Director of the Division of  
Water Resource, Colorado Water Conservation Board 

	Agenda Item 8 - Legal and Legislative Matters
	Agenda Item 9 - General Manager Update
	Treasurer's Report
	Scientific Endeavors
	STOR Update

	Agenda Item 10 - Miscellaneous Matters
	Gunnison Energy Production Report - Solar Panels
	Current Gunnison River Spreadshet
	Newspaper Articles and Other Water News

	Agenda Item 11 - Citizens Comments
	Agenda Item 12 - Future Meetings
	Agenda Item 13 - Summary of Meeting Action Items
	Agenda Item 14- Adjournment



